China New Economy Fund Limited

PEHEERERRLE

Stock Code R 131%5% : 80

BRI R IR
Time is our friend

Innovation is our future
BT =T PR AR K

L =
= “ 1
= 111 111
| = SRR /i EE SRR
S | = it (B
* = | i % 5 i 4 v
= | | - - F !
il A i b 1 |k= %
- i 4
i &
el i
. = - e i
i,

UAL REPORT
£ 3



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Profiles of Directors

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report
Independent Auditors’ Report
Audited Financial Statements
Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows

Notes to financial statements

Summary of Financial Information

B IZBEN RS

REGRIBHRER

2 EK
BFSIRIER
RmBEHR
Rengk
BT RR MR

MIEERRE

TEHEERERRAT

12-16

17-29

30-34

35-36

37
38
39
40
41-79

80

“B——FEERE

1



Corporate Information
AEIEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay (Chairman) Craig Blaser Lindsay %t 4 (£ /)
Mr. Wang Junyan (Chief Executive Officer) FERERE(TTEAAR)
Mr. Gu Xu BB A&

Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman) BIRRSTE(EE)
Professor Xu Yangsheng RBEIE

Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally %t 4
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman) BIRRSTE(EE)
Professor Xu Yangsheng RBEFE

Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally %t 4
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman) BRI E ()
Professor Xu Yangsheng BRiBEFE

Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally %t 4
COMPANY SECRETARY NEIME

Mr. Wong Sze Wai Winston (FCCA) =R ST A (FCCA)
AUDITORS ZEEm

Ernst & Young KGRI BN
Certified Public Accountants TR

22nd Floor BE

CITIC Tower RIRASE 198

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central FERE22E

Hong Kong

2 China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011



INVESTMENT MANAGER

CITIC Securities International
Investment Management (HK) Limited

17/F, Chuang’s Tower

30-32 Connaught Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

CUSTODIAN

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

ADMINISTRATOR

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman KYI-1106
Cayman lIslands

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
South Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman lIslands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG AND HEADQUARTERS

17/F, Chuang’s Tower

30-32 Connaught Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

] 0
Corporate Information
ARER

REEEA
S AR E B (EE) BR AT

BB

IR

T8 30-32 5%
HERE17H#E

FEEA

ELHBETERS (EMERAE
BB
ERAEF 1%

ITHREEA

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

AR EE

P.0O. Box 309, Ugland House
South Church Street, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

RRATRERBETEE R R RAEER

5

IR

T8+ 30-32 %%
HEAREATE

TEFKERERRAR IZB——FFEHRS

". =i ;!-_ 1'-*.

Rl

3

v i-rj-- ‘




R

—
oy B ¥ :
’ Corporate Information
NRIER

COMPLIANCE ADVISER B R
China Everbright Capital Limited PR AREERR AR
17/F, Far East Finance Centre 0
16 Harcourt Road ERE165E

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd
Shop 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

as to Cayman Islands Law:

Maples and Calder

P.O. Box 309

Ugland House, South Church Street
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

as to Hong Kong Law:
Clifford Chance, Hong Kong
28th Floor, Jardine House
One Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.chinaneweconomyfund.com

4 China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011

ERSEF L1718

BRRREBSFELHRAT
BE

Eff

ERABR1835%
AR
171817121716 =

SRR

MEREEE:

Maples and Calder

P.O. Box 309

Ugland House, South Church Street
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

BREE
SIEMRENTT - B
FIRFLEES 15
R KE 281

N

www.chinaneweconomyfund.com



On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of
China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), | take pleasure in
presenting to you the Company’s annual report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Year”).

China New Economy Fund is a closed-ended investment company
established on 1 February 2010. By investing globally in both private and
public enterprises supported by the new economies of Greater China,
the Company is devoted to achieving long-term capital appreciation for
professional investors.

In 2011, the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng China Enterprise
Index fell 19.97% and 21.71%, respectively amid the gradual exit of the
stimulus mode adopted by the Chinese Government. After experiencing
a credit expansion process starting from 2009, China was threatened
by high inflation expectation. The huge creation of credit has led to a
huge capacity growth in the supply side of the Chinese economy. As
the monetary distribution system has not yet reformed adequately, there
could be a huge mismatch between demand and supply when the macro
policy is normalised.

Despite the challenging market situation, the Company will leverage on
its expertise in the financial market to look for investment projects at an
attractive valuations, which will provide the next phase of growth for the
economy and stock markets.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECT

2012 will be a challenging year but we see it as our opportunity. It should
not come as a surprise to see there will be a number of industries facing
an over-supply and de-stocking cycle. That means this decade’s business
up cycle ended in September 2011 and, in our view, we will go into a
three year business down cycle. During this cycle, cyclical companies will
become very difficult to operate and we will see a substantial number of
companies going out of business which has not been seen in China for
over the past ten years.

The current stagnant stock market gives us a great opportunity to
accumulate these next stage winners at very attractive valuations. We will
not hesitate to own these businesses when the valuations are attractive to
us.
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| Chairman’s Statement
FERE
INVESTMENT REVIEW

Looking into 2012, market volatility will not differ much from 2011 and we
see this as new growth points which will provide us great opportunities.
For example, we expect the aerospace, aviation, environmental protection
and shale gas industries, will provide the next phase of growth for the
Chinese economy and stock markets. We will continue to look for good
investment opportunities and will not hesitate to make a move when time
is appropriate. With our excellent investment and risk management team,
we believe it will be another productive year for both our investors and our
team.
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Following the successful listing of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 January 2011, the Company held three investments
in listed companies on 31 December 2011. The largest one is in a social
networking internet platform focusing on the mainland China market.

Details of the Company’s investments in listed companies are as follows:
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At 31 December 2011 M2011 412831 H
Listed equity securities - Hong Kong FHREERE BB
Particular Proportion of Net asset
of issued investee' s attributable
shares capital Unrealised to the
Place of held owned Market gain/(loss) Company
Name of investee incorporation ~ FIEERT  HEMRE Cost value AEBEH  KDAFES
FRENAEMR LA L 3t B RGBFHE ARERLH B mE K&/ (EB) EEFE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TAT THET

(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Fit5E1) (Ftzx2)
(@ Dongjiang Environment The People’s 306,900 0.86% 7,886 7,519 (367) RMB7.24
Company Limited Republic H shares of millions
RIRRROBRAT of China  RMB 1 each AR
REARAME 3069008 7,240,000 7

SRARE 1T

ZHE
(b) HKT Trust and HKT Limited Hong Kong 1,200,000 0.019% 5,436 5,460 24 HK$3.82
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Listed equity securities — The United States

LhEERES - XE

Particular  Proportion of Net asset
of issued investee’ s attributable
shares capital Unrealised to the
Place of held owned Market gain/(loss) Company
Name of investee incorporation  FIEERT  BEARE Cost value AEE  KATER
FREAREM SRR AL it B RAFEE ARERLA A wE K&/ (FR) EERE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THT THT THT THT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FzE1) GE)
() RenrenInc. The Cayman Islands 500,000 0.043% 54,390 13,871 (40,5190  US$524,516
AART] HEHE ordinary 524,516 %L
shares of
US$0.001 each
500,000 & &%
0.001FE L2
Notes: B
(1) The unrealised gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective (1) REBU(BE)EHE201MF12A31BLEFERE
investments during the year ended 31 December 2011. REZ A HEEZS -
@) The calculation of net assets attributable to the Company is based on the latest  (2) ARG 2 BEFEDREBESEREN RS R

published interim reports or prospectus of the respective investments at the end

of the reporting period.

A brief description of the business and financial information of the
investments is as follows:

(@@ Dongjiang Environment Company Limited (“Dongjiang
Environment”) is principally engaged in environmental protection
industry. No dividend was received during the year ended 31
December 2011. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders
of Dongjiang Environment for the period ended 30 June 2011
was approximately RMB99 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Dongjiang Environment at 30 June
2011 was approximately RMB842 million. The fair value of the
investment in Dongjiang Environment is based on quoted market
bid prices.
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(b)  HKT Trust and HKT Limited (“HKT”) is principally engaged in the
provision of integrated telecommunications service. No dividend
was received during the year ended 31 December 2011. The
audited profit attributable to shareholders of HKT for the period
ended 30 June 2011 was approximately HK$537 million and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of HKT as at 30 June
2011 was approximately HK$19,937 million. The fair value of the
investment in HKT is based on quoted market bid prices.

(c)  Renren Inc. is principally engaged in the provision of social
networking internet platform in China. No dividend was received
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The unaudited loss
attributable to shareholders of Renren Inc. for the period ended
30 September 2011 was approximately US$1.2 million and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Renren Inc. at
30 September 2011 was approximately US$1,219 million. The fair
value of the investment in Renren Inc. is based on quoted market
bid prices.

The Company reported a net loss attributable to shareholders of HK$
49,098,434 during the Year. Amid the decline of the global and China
markets during the Year, the Company reported a net asset value of
approximately HK$ 0.79 per share as at 31 December 2011. The net
asset value of the Company decreased during the Year due to unrealised
mark to market losses taken on the investment positions in the portfolio.
The Company will continue to monitor the investments carefully and
expect improvement in its valuations as market conditions improve.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

The Company has obtained stock borrowing facilities during the Year. As
at 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any stock borrowings.

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow it
to capture opportunities with good upside when the opportunities present
themselves in both listed and private equities.

As at 31 December 2011, the gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equities, was nil (31 December 2010: Nil). The
Company does not have any borrowing as at 31 December 2011 (31
December 2010: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2010: Nil).
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CHARGES ON COMPANY’S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no other charges on the Company’s assets or significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 6 January 2011, the Company completed a share placement and
a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
a price of HK$1.03 per share for a total cash consideration, before the
related issue expenses, of HK$312,090,000.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

During the Year, the Company made no capital expenditures or any other
commitments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire any subsidiaries or
associated companies.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has made eight investments in listed companies during the
Year. The largest one is in a social networking interet platform focusing
on the mainland China market.

The rest of the net proceeds will be applied by the Investment Manager
in making investments according to the investment objective, policies
and restrictions of the Company and the requirements of the Articles, the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and the investment management agreement. Any proceeds not
deployed are placed on bank deposits or invested in money market
instruments or money market funds.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had no employees but have three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
Company does not have a share option scheme.

1 O China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011
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FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong or United States dollar to carry out
its business transactions.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to all
management teams of the Company and the Investment Manager for their
dedication and contribution this past Year. We would also like to extend
our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support and confidence in the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Craig Blaser Lindsay
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay, aged 57, Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Lindsay is responsible for the management and formulation of the
Company’s overall investment objective and policies. Mr. Lindsay was
appointed as Chairman on 28 July 2010 and has been Director of the
Company since 1 February 2010.

Mr. Lindsay graduated from the Bloomfield College in USA with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accounting in 1976. He pursued further studies at the
Rutgers University Graduate School of Business in USA and received
his Master of Business Administration in Finance in 1979. Mr. Lindsay
has 31 years’ experience in the investment banking, proprietary trading
and fund management industries. His expertise lies in areas of risk
management, product accounting, financial reporting, regulatory and
compliance and operations. From July 1980 to May 1996, Mr Lindsay
worked for Goldman, Sachs and Co in areas of proprietary accounting
and risk analysis, risk management, product accounting and risk analysis,
government control and mortgage backed control, business analysis,
risk management, product accounting and equities accounting. From
June 1996 to December 2003, Mr. Lindsay served as an executive vice
president and chief financial officer at Tokai Asia Limited (now known as
UFJ Investments Asia Limited). From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Lindsay worked at
Sattva Investment Advisors Limited as principal and chief financial officer.

Currently, Mr. Lindsay is the director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited,
China Alpha Focus Fund Limited, CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
Limited and China Alpha Investment Management Limited (“CAIM”).
He is also the director and chief operating officer of CITIC Securities
International Fund Management Limited (“CSIFM”) and the director of
CITIC Securities International Investment Management (HK) Limited (the
“Investment Manager”). During the year ended 31 December 2011, Mr.
Lindsay is also appointed as director of The American Club Hong Kong on
1 January 2011, CSI RMB Fund Limited on 18 April 2011, Next Horizon
Company Limited on 22 July 2011 and Hong Kong Securities Institute on
7 December 2011. Mr. Lindsay is a licensed person for types 1, 4 and 9
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
and a responsible officer of each of the Investment Manager and CAIM.

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011

HITES

Craig Blaser Lindsay 5t % ' 575 AR QA Z £
J& ° Lindsay St A B B AR A1 E HIZRREHE
BN AIE o Lindsay fc £ 201047 A28 BEZ T AE
ERE2010F2 F1 BREETAQRESE -

Lmdsayﬁ*i_’i._E’W976@%%?%.%%#%@1

BHEGTE B ET - [ EE Rutgers Unlver3|ty
Graduate School of Business # & & i& + W 1979 F
BEIRER(EEEm)E T 247 o Lindsay e AERE
BT  BEBEBERESERITEREIIFLR - &
REKRERE  EMSs MBHSR B 68K
8 o Lindsay StAEE 1980¢7ﬂi1996$5ﬂ{ﬂ%6%
BNTE - BEMEgTT KRR  BERERE - Em
i RER ST - BATEE R REAERE %U ES 5

- BRER  Em@stRERE - B199696 8
£ 20034 12 A - Lindsay %t 4 ¥ 1F Tokai Asia Limited

(38 F8 UFJ Investments Asia Limited) #1172l 42 & 81
7% 48 BL o 82004 4F % 2006 4F -+ Lindsay 4t A4 E B 7
Sattva Investment Advisors Limited * #ETEZ& & A
MBI HAES o

B Al + Lindsay 4t 4 /4 China Alpha Il Fund Limited * China
Alpha Focus Fund Limited + CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders
Fund Limited A1 /R Bl 2% /8 2 & E IR A IR 2 Al ([ A B %
1) 2 E = o # IR ABCITIC Securities Intemational Fund
Management Limited ([ CSIFM | ) 2 & 3R 4B 4B A &
PEITFERKREER(BB)ARAF(KREER
ADZEE - HZE2011F12 A31 ALEFE - Lindsay
% & I8 o Bl R201141A18 2011464 A18
H-2011F7H22H K2011F12 A7 AEZ T A The
American Club Hong Kong * CSI RMB Fund Limited -
Next Horizon Company Limited R & B E A EX£E S
EE o Lindsay b £ ABEELHEEN(EARBE
BEIDETE1E  B4ERFIORITHE TS 2
A RRREEBARTEERENEEAS -



Mr. Wang Junyan, aged 41, Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Wang is responsible for the management and formulation of the
Company’s overall investment objective and policies. Mr. Wang was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 28 July 2010 and has been
Director of the Company since 1 February 2010.

Mr. Wang completed a bachelor’s degree majoring in International Trade
from Zhongshan University (FF L K ) in 1992 and a master’s degree
in Finance from The University of Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Wang has
been involved in investment banking, capital markets, direct investments
and fund management in China and Hong Kong since the early 1990s.
He has accumulated over 16 years of securities investment and asset
management experience in the region.

From August 1993 to October 1997, Mr Wang served in various
departments in J & A Securities Limited. Before his departure, Mr. Wang
was the assistant general manager and was involved in the establishment
of its brokerage, sales and corporate finance operations in Hong Kong.

In October 1997, Mr. Wang was appointed as managing director of
First Shanghai Securities Limited (Formerly known as First Shanghai
Capital Limited) and then in February 2000, he was further appointed
as managing director of First Shanghai Financial Holding Limited, both
companies being subsidiaries of First Shanghai Investments Limited (227.
HK). From January 2007 to June 2007, Mr. Wang was appointed as the
chief investment officer of First Shanghai Fund Management Limited.

From 1998 to December 2006, Mr. Wang was appointed as a director of
China Assets (Holdings) Limited (170.HK) (“China Assets”), an investment
company incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. For the period from October 2002 to January 2007, Mr.
Wang was a director of China Assets Investment Management Limited
and was a member of the investment committee of China Assets. The
investment committee was responsible for identifying the private equity
investments, overseeing the trading portfolio and evaluating the portfolio
performance.
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Currently, Mr. Wang is the director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited,
China Alpha Focus Fund Limited, CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
Limited, CAIM, China Alpha Fund Management Limited, CSIFM and
the Investment Manager. On 1 November 2010, he was appointed as
Adjunct Professor in the Department of Finance of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong (“CUHK”). He was also an independent non-executive
director of Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (1171.HK), which he
resigned on 20 May 2011. Mr. Wang is an independent non-executive
director of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited (31.HK) and
LIVZON Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. (000513.S2). On 28 June 2011,
Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Wumart Stores, Inc., of which the issued shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange until the transfer of
listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (1025.HK)
on 30 June 2011. Mr. Wang was also appointed as a director of Dragon
Origin Limited on 12 April 2011 and CSI RMB Fund Ltd on 18 April 2011.
Mr. Wang is a licensed person for types 4 and 9 regulated activities under
the SFO and a responsible officer of the Investment Manager.

Mr. Gu Xu, aged 47, Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Gu completed a bachelor’s degree majoring in Economics from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics ( /&8 £ KX2) in 1986.
He further received a master’s degree majoring in Economics from the
same university in 1989 and a master’s degree majoring in Business
Administration awarded jointly by Fudan University (18 B X ) and The
University of Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Gu has accumulated 16 years’
experience in asset management, investment and financial management
in both financial conglomerate and private company. From October 2006
to May 2008, Mr. Gu was the president and partner of /& 1% & #5#%
& & 12 A [R A 7] (Create Capital Co., Ltd.) and he was responsible for
the management and investment decision making of a fund in the PRC.
Since July 2009, Mr. Gu has been acting as the director of ;i F &R &%
EHE 2 EH B S TR (Henan Agriculture Development Investment
Fund Management Limited) and is responsible for the management
and supervision of a fund namely Ji] B 2 % 7 % &= ¥ 48 & & © (Henan
Agriculture Development Investment Fund). Since August 2010, Mr. Gu
has been serving as the general manager of F/8RENILEIERER
R & T A &) (Shanghai Honghua Cultural Venture Investment Company
Limited) (the “Honghua Fund”), a fund company targeting investment in
culture industry in China. He is also the general manager and director of
the investment manager of the Honghua Fund. Mr. Gu was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company on 25 November 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Kam Chau, aged 47, Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Siu obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
City University of Hong Kong in 1992. He is a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
(practising) of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Siu has over 21 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
company secretarial and corporate finance functions. He is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Wang On Group
Limited (1222.HK), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. On 10 October 2011, Mr. Siu was appointed as an
executive director of China Gogreen Assets Investment Limited (397.
HK), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Siu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 July 2010.

Professor Xu Yangsheng, aged 53, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Engineering Sciences (&7 T2 EFtft 1), Academician of International
Eurasian Academy of Sciences and an academician of Chinese Academy
of Engineering (1 BI T2zt 1 ). Professor Xu received his PhD degree
from University of Pennsylvania, USA in 1989, and worked at Carnegie
Mellon University in USA from 1989 to 1999. In 1997, he joined CUHK
where he is currently a professor of Automation and Computer-Aided
Engineering, and Pro-Vice-Chancellor starting from 1 March 2011.
Professor Xu’s research includes space robotics, intelligent control and
systems, and human interface. Professor Xu has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Sun East Technology (Holdings)
Limited (365.HK), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, since May 2005. Professor Xu was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 July 2010.
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Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally, aged 65, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Dally was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 July 2010. Mr. Dally
obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree from Atlantic Union College in
Massachusetts, USA in 1981 and a Master in Business Administration
from Nova Southeastern University in Florida, USA in 1992. He also
obtained the Trust and Estate Practitioner designation from the Society of
Trust and Estates Practitioners since October 1993. Mr. Dally has been
an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders
Fund Limited since 4 March 2008.

Mr. Dally was the former managing director of Wachovia Bank And
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited from 3 February 2005, a subsidiary
of Wachovia Corporation, all of which was acquired by Wells Fargo
And Company in October 2008. As a result of such acquisition and
subsequent consolidation between entities within Wachovia Corporation
and those within Wells Fargo and Company, Mr. Dally served as a
managing director of Wells Fargo Bank And Trust Co (Cayman) Limited, a
subsidiary of Wells Fargo And Company, until 12 November 2010.

Mr. Dally served in the trust division of Bank of Butterfield International
(Cayman) Ltd for 14 years. Before his retirement in 2004, he acted as the
senior manager and head of the trust and corporate services division.
Prior to that, he was manager of the trust administration division of
Butterfield Bank in Bermuda for 9 years.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the
“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a
closed-ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”). The

Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 37 to 79.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the Year (31 December 2010: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the
Year is set out on page 80.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the placing of the Company’s new shares as disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements, the Company has not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Junyan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Gu Xu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Siu Kam Chau

Professor Xu Yangsheng

Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally

In order to comply with the requirements of the Code Provision A.4.2
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, Mr. Wang Junyan and Mr. Siu Kam Chau will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
retiring Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set

out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 12 to 16 of this
annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation (if
any).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” mentioned below,
no contract of significance to which the Company was a party and in
which any Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/OTHER
PERSON'’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERR HMA TR RAAE
gk 558

RN IRAD 2 5d

R2011F12A31 B - L FAT(RRRESHEET
A BBRIN AR R 2 BRI GD ([ R fn ) R+
BEBLRAARIREES RS EHIE336EFTEZ
Az gmsEs

pu)

X
D

)

Number of

Number of Indirect % of Issued
Name of Substantial Shareholders Direct Interests Interests Share Capital
FERRER HEERYE EEEREE GERTREIESL
Pan Global Alpha Fund Ltd 29,000,000 9.57
Murtsa Investment Managers Limited 29,000,000 (Note) (Bff3E) 9.57
Murtsa Capital Partners Limited 29,000,000 (Note) (Fff7E) 9.57
Diamond Kingdom Investments Limited 29,000,000 (Note) (Fff5E) 9.57
Cheerful Profit Investments Limited 29,000,000 (Note) (Fff7E) 9.57
Cheung Lam Hung (3R A7) 2,300,000 29,000,000 (Note) (Fff&E) 10.33
Advance Profit Group Limited 29,000,000 (Note) (Fff5E) 9.57

Notes:

These interests represented (i) 29,000,000 Shares held by Pan Global Alpha Fund Ltd
(“PGAF”); and (i) 2,300,000 Shares held by Mr. CHEUNG Lam Hung.

Murtsa Investment Managers Limited (“MIML”) holds 100% of voting shares in PGAF.
MIML is wholly owned by Diamond Kingdom Investments Limited (“DKIL”), which is in turn
majority owned by Advance Profit Group Limited (“APGL”). APGL is wholly owned by Mr.
CHEUNG Lam Hung.

Murtsa Capital Partners Limited (“MCPL”) has discretionary asset management of PGAF,
which in turn is 100% owned by Cheerful Profit Investments Limited (“CPIL”). CPIL is
majority owned by APGL.

Accordingly, each of MIML, DKIL, APGL, MCPL and CPIL is deemed to have interest in

the 29,000,000 Shares held by PGAF and the 2,300,000 Shares held by Mr. CHEUNG
Lam Hung.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company has not
been notified by any other persons who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement dated 10 December 2010, the
Company appointed HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(the “Custodian”) as its custodian. The Custodian has agreed to provide
the Company with, among others, custodian services in respect of all
assets of the Company. The Custodian Agreement was effective on 10
December 2010 and will continue to be in force until terminated by either
the Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less than
three months advance notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) up to 0.04% per annum of
the Company’s net asset value, and (b) HK$7,500 per month for the
six month period from the Listing Date, and HK$15,000 for each month
thereafter.

During the Year, the custodian fee of HK$144,448 was paid by the
Company.

The Custodian is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors anticipate that the fees
payable to the Custodian under the Custodian Agreement will not exceed
HK$1 million and the applicable percentage ratio calculated for the
purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will be, on an annual basis,
less than 5%. Accordingly, the Custodian Agreement constitutes a de
minimis continuing connected transaction and is exempt from, reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders approval
requirements under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the custody service provided by the Custodian to the Company under
the Custodian Agreement constitutes an exempt continuing connected
transaction of the Company.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 10 December
2010, the Company appointed the Investment Manager as its investment
manager to provide the Company with investment management services
for an initial term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2012 unless
terminated by either party upon not less than 180 days’ written notice
or earlier for cause. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive from
the Company a management fee accruing monthly at the annual rate of
2% of the net asset value of the Company on each valuation date and
payable monthly in arrears. In addition, a performance fee will also be
payable by the Company to the Investment Manager. The performance
fee is payable semi-annually in arrears and is calculated at the rate of 20%
of any net appreciation (after deduction of the management fees for the
relevant period, but prior to deduction of the performance fee) in the net
asset value per share on the immediately preceding valuation date, above
the previous highest net asset value per share on any preceding valuation
date in respect of which a performance fee was last paid multiplied by the
number of shares in issue at the time of calculating the performance fee.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$5,219,572 was paid by the
Company. No performance fee was paid by the Company during the Year.

The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
service provided by the Investment Manager to the Company under the
Investment Management Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

The Investment Manager is a wholly owned subsidiary of CSIFM. Shares
in CSIFM are held by China Alpha Fund Management Ltd as to 45% and
CSIAMF (CL) Limited as to 55%. CSIAMF (CL) Limited is wholly owned
by CITIC Securities International Asset Management Limited, while China
Alpha Fund Management Ltd is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Junyan, the
chief executive officer and Director of the Company. Mr. Wang Junyan
and Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay are Directors of both the Company and the
Investment Manager.

DIRECTORS’ OPINION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, the terms of and the transactions
contemplated under the Investment Management Agreement and
the Custodian Agreement have been entered into after arm’s length
negotiation, on normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Company’s non-
exempt continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transaction disclosed above by the
Company in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Currently the Investment Manager and their directors, officers and
employees provide management services to a number of hedge funds, a
mutual fund and a managed discretionary account with similar investment
objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest of
the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the Investment
Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company to act in the
best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable having regard also
to its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Wang Junyan and Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay are directors of the
Company and the Investment Manager and are involved in the day-to-
day operations of each of these entities. This may give rise to conflicts of
interest.

As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Wang and Mr. Lindsay will
be able to act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
In addition, all major decisions of each of these companies will be made
by their respective board of directors of these companies as a whole and
not at the sole discretion of Mr. Wang and/or Mr. Lindsay. In the case of
the Company, this includes the Independent Non-executive Directors and
the third Executive Director, Mr. Gu Xu.

Mr. Wang and Mr. Lindsay will maintain confidentiality in respect of the
information of each of the funds managed by the Investment Manager.
They are also aware of their obligations under the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong’s Internal Control Guidelines that they are
required to establish and ensure the integrity and security of all information
relevant to the business operations of the respective entities.
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The table below sets forth the funds/accounts currently managed by  FREHIEFZHIREESIEABREENES BEE K
Directors or the Investment Manager and certain details of those funds/  #%Z 54 BEPME TS o

accounts.

Fund/
Managed
account
B/
BERF

Investment Objective/
Mandate
REBE ZEF

Percentage of assets
under management

Investment Manager (Funds 1 to 4 below)
REEBA(TX1E4EES)

Craig B. LINDSAY (Funds 1 to 4 below)
Craig B. LINDSAY (T X1 Z41EE$)

1 CITIC
Securities
Alpha
Leaders
Fund

2 China Alpha ll

Fund

Achieving a maximum capital growth
through investing in securities,
derivative products and related
instruments issued by companies
whose majority of their business
and/or revenue is closely related
to the economic growth of the
People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. It
will also invest in the United States
and United Kingdom markets.

BBIER AR D EB R, SRA
s ARME - B - 50
R A ENKES RS EHEEN
NAEIFTBETNES  TTEEMKL
HETAERSZEAREREE - B
TR EREB KRBT

Achieving a maximum capital growth
through investing in securities,
derivative products and related
instruments issued by companies
whose majority of their business
and/or revenue is closely related
to the economic growth of the
People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. It
will also invest in the United States
and United Kingdom markets.

BRRERRE D EB R TRA
g ARLME - B - 50
KR BENKBEREEEMN
RAEIFTEITORES - ITHEERNR
HATEERSEAEARIGE - B
TMEEREB R EBEMIS o

in new economy Assets under
industries (as at 31 management (as at
December 2011) 31 December 2011)
FRBTREEEE EEEE
LE Bl (74 2011 & (R2011 % Geographical coverage
12H381H) 12A31H) I 5 ]
8.51% US$120.7 million Mainly the People’s Republic of
1.207 {83%7T China (Shanghai & Shenzhen),
Hong Kong, Singapore. Taiwan,
the United States (New York) and
the United Kingdom (London).
FERPEARKMBE(LBRR
Y~ BB FE - /5E - EE
(44 R EB (fRF0 -
24.72% US$181.0 million Mainly the People’s Republic of
1.81018%70 China (Shanghai & Shenzhen),

Hong Kong, Singapore. Taiwan,
the United States (New York) and
the United Kingdom (London).

FERPEARKNE(ERR
W)~ BE - FhK - B - EE
(4)) BB (R0 -
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Fund/
Managed
account
2e/
BEEF

Investment Objective/
Mandate
REBE ZFFE
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Percentage of assets
under management
in new economy
industries (as at 31
December 2011)
FRBTRXEREE
Ll (A 2011 &
12A31H)

e o n

Assets under
management (as at
31 December 2011)
EEEE

(20114
12A31H)

Report oT th

Geographical coverage
b 32 £ ]

|r ctors
EEERE

3 China Alpha
Focus Fund

4 CSl Alpha
Fund Series
-Csl
China -
Hong Kong
Leaders
Fund

CSl Alpha Fund

Series - F {2
AP EES
BEEES

Achieving a maximum capital growth
through investing in securities,
derivative products and related
instruments issued by companies
whose majority of their business
and/or revenue is closely related
to the economic growth of the
People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. It
will also invest in the United States
and United Kingdom markets.

BBIRER R D EB R, SA
s ARLME - B - F0
1& \%“%E’Jiﬁ/ﬂ‘“iﬁﬁ \\\\\\ S¥iElaly)

NEIFTBEITHNES - ITTEEMR
HETAERSKEAREREE - H
TR EREB R EE TS

Achieving long-term appreciation of
unit price through capital growth
and income appreciation by
investing in a diversified portfolio
of at least twenty three blue chip
equities, and to a limited extent,
ADRs and GDRs, that are listed
primarily on Hong Kong stock
exchange and/or any international
securities exchange and/or other
organised securities markets that
are open to the international public
and on which such securities are
regularly traded.

EERERZTILHREESE - B
BELBEEER - ZIMEER
%ﬁlﬂq&é%ﬁﬁ;{* % (ADR)
2HIFFLRE (GDR) * BAEER

BERBAEINESE S EGE

BERBER - EZi?a’}f%IEE

EEBRR, SRR ESFRS

i K/ SR E BB AR B BR AR

ATEBZEEZSFNEMEHES

BHMIZ L ©

14.68%

19.01%

US$18.4 million
1,8408 37T

US$24.4 million
2,440 BETT

TEHEERERRAT

Mainly the People’s Republic of
China (Shanghai & Shenzhen),
Hong Kong, Singapore. Taiwan,
the United States (New York) and
the United Kingdom (London).

FERPEARKMBE(ERR
)~ FE - FE - /E - EE
(ARA9) R KB (R 2 -

Mainly Hong Kong
FERTH

“B——FEERE
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Percentage of assets
under management
in new economy

Assets under

Fund/ industries (as at 31 management (as at

Managed December 2011) 31 December 2011)

account Investment Objective/ HRBTEEREE EEEE

2 Mandate LE Bl (74 2011 & (R2011 & Geographical coverage
EEERS REEBR ZEF 128318) 12H31H) IR EE

WANG Junyan (Funds 1 to 4 above plus the following)

FHRE(LXES1Z4MUT—18)

5 Managed Achieving a maximum capital growth  19.44% US$55.5 million Mainly the People’s Republic of
account through investing in securities, 5,550 BT China (Shanghai & Shenzhen),
managed derivative products and related Hong Kong, Singapore. Taiwan,
by China instruments issued by companies the United States (New York) and
Alpha Fund whose majority of their business the United Kingdom (London).
Management and/or revenue is closely related FTEAPEAREME(LEEMRE
Ltd to the economic growth of the )~ B I - 678 - ERH

People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. It
will also invest in the United States
and United Kingdom markets.
BB RRE D EBF R TRA
g ARLME - B - F0

BB

NRIFBEITHES -

EREEMERR

PTEEMR

AR TREESR KEANIR(E - B
THEEREB R EE TS o

Interests Held by Directors or Investment Manager in Other

Funds/Accounts

1. China Alpha Il Fund Ltd

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay and Mr. Wang Junyan directly or indirectly
hold shares in China Alpha Il Fund Ltd. The table below sets forth
details of the shares held by Mr. Lindsay and Mr. Wang:

(4B 40) R RB (R0

ESOREEEAREMES RENER

China Alpha Il Fund Ltd

Craig Blaser Lindsay %t 4 & T & E St £ E# ok fE
#4575 China Alpha Il Fund LtdfA%1D « &5
Lindsay 7t 4 &2 T 2 A AT D M 1S

Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of China Alpha Il Fund Ltd as at 31
December 2011

Shareholder Type of shares 1% {2 {&{E1& China Alpha Il Fund Ltd
R=R IR A% 48 5 H2011 F12 831 ANWEEFEE I
Mr. Lindsay Participating shares which rank pari passu to all 0.75% of participating shares

Lindsay %t 4 participating shares held by other investors 28811 0.75%

Mr. Wang and his immediate family
members
TRAEMEERFTGKE

China Alpha Fund Management Ltd, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wang

FRAEZEABHIF China Apha
Fund Management Ltd

SE - BEMIREE[RENAE2ERG
FHERASMNL

Participating shares which rank pari passu to all
participating shares held by other investors

2R - BEMKEERENME 28RN
= EREAL

Participating shares which rank pari passu to all
participating shares held by other investors

S - BEMIKEE/E NS ERH
FHRASMNL

In its capacity as the fund manager,
management shares with no economic rights
ERERKIE S  ERERN MR

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011

11.77% of participating shares
Z2ERHH11.77%

-

06% of participating shares
%Eﬁiﬂx@a@ 1.06%

100% of management shares
EIEERR {7 ) 100%



China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd

Mr. Wang Junyan directly or indirectly holds shares in China Alpha
Focus Fund Ltd. The table below sets forth details of the shares
directly or indirectly held by Mr. Wang:

Shareholder
B=R

Type of shares

1% 45 3851

i 1 '.J. -

5]

. il
i
|
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China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd

F & 2 % B ¥ o [E# 5B China Alpha Focus
Fund Ltd #9817 T2 &k5I T 5t 4 B B sk i 75
AR -
Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd as at 31
December 2011

% {2 f8{E14 China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd
R2011 F12 A 31 BENEEFERS

Mr. Wang and his immediate family Participating shares which rank pari passu to all

members participating shares held by other investors
THRERRERAREKE 28RS - BEMREEFANME L8R5

FHRET

China Alpha Fund Management Ltd, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wang

FREZEHEHH AT China Apha
Fund Management Ltd

Participating shares which rank pari passu to all
participating shares held by other investors

2R - BEMKEEREHME28RH
ZHAEMT

In its capacity as the fund manager,
management shares with no economic rights

ERERKESY » ERERN |KE

s L A

CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited

Mr. Wang Junyan indirectly holds shares in CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited. The table below sets forth details of the
shares indirectly held by Mr. Wang:

Shareholder
RR

Type of shares
1R 15 38 Bl

26.05% of participating shares
217 8 26.05%

9.74% of participating shares
ZERHE9.74%

100% of management shares
IR ) 100%

CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited

T & E 5% A& B % £ B CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited B9f% 17 o T & &5 T o
EZE B RMD RS -

Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
Limited as at 31 December 2011

B 13 {&E 145 CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
Limited 74 2011 £ 12 A 31 BN EEFEES L

China Alpha Fund Management Ltd, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wang

FREZEHFH AT China Apha
Fund Management Ltd

Participating shares which rank pari passu to all
participating shares held by other investors

2R - BEMKEERFHOAE2EKN
ZHEREHAL

CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

Participating shares which rank pari passu to all
participating shares held by other investors

CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, which is 2[R BEMEEEFENMELXERD
the indirect controlling shareholder of ZHERSEHA

the Investment Manager
PEIEFROERATNEEEZE
Ff$ B 2 7] CSIAM (CL) Investments
Limited * FERESFRNBRAF R
HEEE AR EEERRE

CITIC Securities International Fund
Management Limited, a company in
which Mr. Wang indirectly holds 45%

CITIC Securities International Fund
Management Limited » T ¢ A4 &
55 45% RV A F]

In its capacity as the fund manager,
management shares with no economic rights
ERERKBR SN - ERERN BERE

AnwmL /A

Note: Participating shares are redeemable shares with economic rights but no voting B3
right and may be acquired by investors in the respective funds. Management
shares are voting, non-participating, non-redeemable shares with no economic

rights and may only be held by the fund manager of that fund.

1.00% of participating shares
2R 1.00%

98.38% of the participating shares
2R 17 1) 98.38%

100% of management shares
EEERINE100%

C SER) BTSRRI A B R R - EEREE A
HEERSNREERE - EEERNHAFRER - TH

OB R 28 - TRERRD - WERHZESD
Hemmg o
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4, CSI China — Hong Kong Leaders Fund

CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited is the seed investor in CSI China
— Hong Kong Leaders Fund, a sub-fund of the CSI Alpha Fund
Series. CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, which is the indirect
controlling shareholder of the Investment Manager.

As at 31 December 2011, the value of the units held by CSIAM (CL)
Investments Limited accounted for 99.05% of the net asset value of
CSI China — Hong Kong Leaders Fund. These units rank pari passu
to all units held by other investors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares of
the Company under the articles of association of the Company although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to
34, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year and up to
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had no employees but three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of the fees or emoluments of directors in respect of their services
rendered to the Company during the Year are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Craig Blaser Lindsay
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining a good corporate governance standard. The Board believes
that a good corporate governance standard will provide a framework
for the Company to formulate the business strategies and policies, and
manage the associated risks through effective internal control procedures.
It will also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to the shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (The “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The
Board is of the view that throughtout the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Company was in compliance with the code provisions of the CG
Code, save and except for code provision A.4.1 which states that the
Non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election.

None of the existing Non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed
for a specific term. However, one third of the Non-executive Directors of
the Company for the time being shall retire by rotation (provided that every
Non-executive Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years) and be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company. As such, even though each Non-executive Director is
not appointed for a specific term, his term of office is the period up to his
retirement by rotation which is in accordance with Code A.4.2 of the CG
Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011

ARREFE((BEFR NBNERRKFNERER
R EEEHE SKFNEEBERAREAIR/AR
AR M HIRT IR MR ARM - WALE BB RN
MRS FE R AR - RN TARSARFN
BEAE - IRHBER RERANRBEML -

EEERER

ARARCHEABAB A HABRAR (B )E
Z ETRAN( ERA D8R 14 FRB R E AT R T
([ exE AR DR 2 KE 2 RA - BZE2011
FI2AN HILBEFE  EFERA ARFETE
FEVATRIRSTRIES - HESTANRCE A4 IRARTEIE
WITEFRTREEHRARETRBEERI -

ARRIBRAFNTESFHEABI LR - AW - K
RAERIFNTEFTZ =02 —A%HEER(ESIFHR
TERFAEVE=FERRNLFAEBRRERRR
RBFAE LEEEE - At BESIFNTESY
BEARZAHR  HEBMBRREZERBOXER
STRISE A4.2 158 R (E L2 B3R -

HHERZNWEESTA

AN BN E TR0 FTEZESTRIfE AE R
TARABFRHWRTFR - KAAREERES
TEHEEENE  2EEEHER - HEZE2011F12A4
31 AIEFE—EETEETRIFMHENZSHET



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six members,
three of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Craig Blaser
Lindsay who is the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang Junyan, who is
the Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Gu Xu. The other three members
are independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Kam Chau,
Professor Xu Yangsheng and Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors” on pages 12 to 16 of this annual report.

The Board held 4 regular meetings during the year ended 31 December
2011. The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, complying with the Company’s
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company’s performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company’s service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Composition of the Board, including names of the independent Non-
executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and accounts
of the Company. The Directors may seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The
Company will, upon request, provide separate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay is the Chairman and Mr. Wang Junyan is the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. They have segregated and
clearly defined roles. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for the Company’s business
development and daily management generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Board has three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received a written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Directors established the Audit and Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and code provisions
B.1.1 of the CG Code. Pursuant to the meeting of the Board dated 20
December 2011, the Audit and Remuneration Committee was split into
the “Audit Committee” and “Remuneration Committee” and the Terms
of Reference of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company were adopted by the Board. Each of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees consists of the three Independent Non-
executive Directors — Mr. Siu Kam Chau (being the chairman with
professional qualifications in accountancy), Professor Xu Yangsheng and
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary audit related duties of the committee are to provide the Board
with an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Company, to
oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee shall hold not less than
two meetings a year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary remuneration related duties of the committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management; and (iii)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to
time. The Remuneration Committee shall hold at least one meeting a year.

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011
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DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board as
a whole is responsible for the appointment of its members. In considering
the appointment of a new Director, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates. The Board is also responsible for nomination of
appropriate person for election by shareholders at general meeting of the
Company, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the annual
general meeting contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed
to be re-elected at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to
make an informed decision on re-election of Directors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration paid or
payable to the independent auditors, Emst & Young, for services rendered
in respect of audit services and non-audit services are HK$140,000 and
HK$137,000, respectively.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other Board
Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out
in the table below:

" Corporate Governance Repo
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R ENEZE2011F12831BLFELFESES M
HihEEZZEeeRMBEREN TE

Meeting attended/held
HESERE T BTERAE

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
EEg EREEE FHEES
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay 5t 4 4/4 - -
Mr. Wang Junyan TEERE 4/4 - -
Mr. Gu Xu BAMBSEAE 4/4 - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Siu Kam Chau FRERIA L 4/4 2/2 2/2
Professor Xu Yangsheng BRBEHE 2/4 0/2 1/2
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally 5t 4 4/4 2/2 2/2
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EREBRE

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for each financial year and to present the interim results, annual financial
statements, and related announcements to shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 35 to 36.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the annual general meeting to meet with the shareholders.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

China New Economy Fund Limited Annual Report 2011
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To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited

(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy Fund
Limited (“the Company”) set out on pages 37 to 79, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 EEN RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2011, and of the
Company’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

9 March 2012
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Statement of Comprehensive In
EHEHRER

Year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE2011F12 A31 BILFE

Period from
1 February
2010 (date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
201042 A 1H
BZ2011F (MBS
128318 ZE2010%F
IEFE 12 A31 HIEHE
Note HK$ HK$
F=E BT VST
REVENUE WA 5 7,824 -
Net change in fair value of financial RATAEBBEREZ
assets and liabilities at fair value TREEHRAE
through profit or loss N EZE)FEE 6 (39,482,879) —
Other operating expenses H b A 7 (9,623,379) (555,377)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BR% A 518 7 (49,098,434) (555,377)
Income tax expenses FriS i 2 11 - -
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AAREBRER
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD BEAES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FRHAGER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ZHEEEAE (49,098,434) (555,377)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO FATEEERTEAREMS
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FRER
OF THE COMPANY 12
— Basic — &K (0.16) (555,377)
— Diluted —#E (0.16) N/A

PEFEEREERAT —E——EEEHE O/
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Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H

2011 2010
2011 § 20104
Notes HK$ HK$
ihE=s BT BT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE R H M FE U IR 13 582,448 =
Prepaid listing expenses A R 14 - 24,057,317
Financial assets at fair value through EATEEBERYRZ
profit or loss TREE 15 26,850,106 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEE 16 211,661,841 =
Total current assets MENBEERE 239,094,395 24,057,317
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Other payables and accruals E b RN RIE R e AT & 17 322,929 19,372,317
Amount due to a related company. JESRAE A R FIA 18 392,501 5,240,377
Total current liabilities mEEERE 715,430 24,612,694
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/(AE) 238,378,965 (555,377)
EQUITY =
Issued capital BB TR A 19 30,300,000 —#
Reserves e 208,078,965 (555,377)
Total equity REmRE 238,378,965 (555,377)
NET ASSET/(LIABILITY) VALUE PER SHARE BREE (AE)FE 20 0.79 (555,377)
# Less than HK$1 LIABTT
Director Director
EFE Ea
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~Statement of Changes |ﬁLEquTty ccge.ca
EREEHR

Year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE2011F12 A31 BILFE

Issued Share Accumulated

capital premium losses Total

BRITRA R 5RE 2R FoH

Note HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$

FidzE BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2011 R2011F1 A1 8 - - (555,377) (555,377)

Issue of shares by placing BREEZTRD 19 30,300,000 281,790,000 - 312,090,000

Share placement expenses B ERY 19 - (24,057,224) - (24,057,224)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAEERE - - (49,098,434)  (49,098,434)

At 31 December 2011 R2011F12 A31H 30,300,000 257,732,776*  (49,653,811)* 238,378,965

At 1 February 2010 (date of incorporation) 201062 A1 8 (KAL) - - - -

Issue of shares IR 19 -+ - - -

Total comprehensive loss for the period HRNzAEBREAE - - (555,377) (555,377)

At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A31H - = (655,377 (555,377)

# Less than HK$1 & DT

- These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$208,078,965 (2010: debit ~ * Z LB R B R IE M IS AR 2R N &Y 5 208,078,965 75 7T

balance of HK$555,377) in the statement of financial position. (20104 : {E77 #82555,377 /#7T) °

PEFEEREERAT —E——fEEHs 39



BERER

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE2011F12 A31 HILFE

Period from
1 February
2010 (date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A 1H
Bzo01E Gaiifzaa=k::)
12A31AH Z2010F
ILEE 12 A 31 B 14
Notes HK$ HK$
Bk B BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHB2HIRE
Loss before tax BABAI B 1R (49,098,434) (555,377)
Adjustments for: FATIEERE :
Interest income FlEMA 5 (7,824) -
Payments for purchase of financial assets BERATERAERIE
at fair value through profit or loss and settlement of LEMBEREERATE
financial liabiltties at fair value through profit or loss ERERYIE BAENH (107,517,581) =
Proceeds from sale of financial assets and financial liabilities HERATERRRERIIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SHEELERMBENETE 41,259,767 =
Net realised loss on financial assets at fair value BATEEBERSIR SRHEER
through profit or loss BHEETE 6 778,960 =
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at BATERBERIIRZ EHEER
fair value through profit or loss REBEBETE 6 40,862,135 -
Net realised gain on financial liabilties at fair value BATEEBERTIK 2 BAEN
through profit or loss BHYHFE 6 (2,233,387) =
(75,956,364) (555,377)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables BN Rt IR (581,864) =
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid listing expenses B EmRSRD,/ (48m) 24,057,317 (24,057,317)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals HibERFOEREER(RD) /Em (19,049,388) 19,372,317
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to a related company FEfEREARFTECRD) /Em (4,847,876) 5,240,377
Cash used in operations TETHMARE (76,378,175) -
Interest received BIAE 7,240 -
Net cash flows used in operating activities BEEHME AL REFE (76,370,935) -
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY RMERBFE2EERE
Proceeds from issue of shares and net BROBETFGFERBETBIRE L
cash flows from a financing activity RemetE 19 288,032,776 —
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AERBESEREMEE 211,661,841 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period F /R RRESE - =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS E/ERREREEEE
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD 211,661,841 -
ANALYSIS OF BALANGES OF CASH AND CASH ReRBESELERIN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank BIRE 16 3,664,389 -
Short-term time deposit with maturity of less than three months ~ ZIHESH AR =EA 2B R 16 207,997,452 =
211,661,841 B
# Less than HK$1 & DR BT
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CORPORATION INFORMATION

China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The Company was established for the purpose
of acting as a closed-end investment company.

The Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the Company
is at 17th Floor, Chuang’s Tower, 30-32 Connaught Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through investing globally in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The Company’s investment activities are managed by CITIC
Securities International Investment Management (HK) Limited (the
“Investment Manager”).

The shares of the Company were listed by way of private placing
(the “Placing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 January 2011.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI MY

31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H

2.2 IMPACT OF REVISED INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the following amended IFRSs,
effective as of 1 January 2011:

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
(amendment) effective
1 January 2011

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

(amendment) effective
1 February 2010

Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to IFRSs
(May 2010) effective
either 1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011

The adoption of the standards is described below:

IAS 24 Related Party Transactions (Amendment)

The IASB issued an amendment to IAS 24 that clarifies the
definitions of a related party. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarifies the
circumstances in which persons and key management personnel
affect related party relationships of an entity. In addition, the
amendment introduces an exemption from the general related
party disclosure requirements for transactions with government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the reporting entity. The
adoption of the amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment)

The IASB issued an amendment that alters the definition of a
financial liability in IAS 32 to enable entities to classify rights
issues and certain options or warrants as equity instruments.
The amendment is applicable if the rights are given pro rata to
all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-
derivative equity instruments, to acquire a fixed number of the
entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency.
The amendment has had no effect on the financial position or
performance of the Company because the Company does not have
these types of instruments.
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2.2

2.3

IMPACT OF REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Improvements to IFRSs

In May 2010, the IASB issued its third omnibus of amendments
to its standards, primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. The adoption of the following amendments resulted
in changes to accounting policies, but no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments-Disclosures: The amendment
was intended to simplify the disclosures provided by
reducing the volume of disclosures around collateral held and
improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information to
put the quantitative information in context.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial statements are listed below. These
standards are those that the Company reasonably expects to have
an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when
applied at a future date. The Company intends to adopt these
standards when they become effective.

IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation — Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented
in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified
(or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example,
upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately
from items that will never be reclassified. The amendments affect
presentation only and have therefore no impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance. The amendments become
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI MY

31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H

2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced
Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial
assets that have been transferred but not derecognised to enable
the user of the Company’s financial statements to understand the
relationship with those assets that have not been derecognised
and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires
disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognised assets to
enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with,
the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognised assets.
The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2011. The amendment affects disclosure only and
has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work
on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined
in IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will
address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The
completion of this project is expected over the course of 2011
or the first half of 2012. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Company
will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when
issued, to present a comprehensive picture.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for
all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an
entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or
permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that this
standard will have on the financial position and performance. This
standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Financial instruments
(a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into the following categories in accordance with IAS
39.

()  Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

The category of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is sub-divided into:

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading:

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling and/or repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes equity securities.
These assets are acquired principally for the purpose of
generating a profit from short-term fluctuation in price.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. All derivatives and liabilities from short sales of
financial instruments are classified as held for trading. The
Company’s policy is not to apply hedge accounting.

Financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in
this category are those that have been designated
by management on initial recognition. Management
may only designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an
instrument by instrument basis:

° The designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

o The assets and liabilities are part of a group of
financial assets, financial liabilities or both which
are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment
strategy.

o The financial instrument contains one or more
embedded derivatives which significantly modify
the cash flows that otherwise would be required
by the contract.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. The Company
includes in this category amounts relating to short-term
receivables.

(i) Other financial liabilities

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than
those classified as held for trading. The Company
includes in this category amounts relating to other
payables and accurals and the amount due to a related
company.

(b) Recognition
The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial

liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. All transaction costs for such
instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than
those classified as held for trading) are measured initially at
their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs
of acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial
instruments which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
those financial instruments are recorded in ‘Net change in
fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss’. Interest earned and dividend revenue elements
of such instruments are recorded separately in ‘Interest
income’ and ‘Dividend income’ respectively.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments,
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where:

° The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(e) Derecognition (Continued)

° Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position, if and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
the reporting date is based on their quoted price or binding dealer
price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial
asset or group of financial assets classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is an objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that it
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and, where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred) discounted using the asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income and expense

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive
the payment is established. Dividend income is presented net of
any non-recoverable withholding taxes. Dividend expense relating
to equity securities sold short is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive the payment is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or a parent of the Company;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:
(i) the entity and the Company are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share capital

The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction
from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. A proposed dividend is
recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
annual general meeting of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at bank, demand deposits and
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax
Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there are no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

Hong Kong

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

PRC

Investment income and capital gain may be subjected to
withholding tax deducted at the source of the income. For
the statement of cash flows, cash flows from investments are
presented net of withholding taxes, when applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the
Hong Kong dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Company’s performance
is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars.
Therefore, the Hong Kong dollar is considered as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. The gain or loss arising from retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences
on item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income is also recognised in other comprehensive
income).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts recognised in the financial statements
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, 3.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective investment’s domicile.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFWER
During the year ended 31 December 2011, all of the Company’s HE2011F12 A1 BILFE - FIEAR AN
investments are equity securities listed either on the Hong B ERE BT A B 52 5 AT EThag#E
Kong Stock Exchange or the New York Stock Exchange. For s o ABEREEE  ARBREKRE—(EFEL
management purposes, the Company is organised into one main BOES  TERERERES o AARINFIAE
operating segment, which invests mainly in equity securities. All MG EME - BIEFEHERBREMES -
of the Company’s activities are interrelated, and each activity is It FTEBEARE L RRIEGENANRABELE—ED
dependent on the other. Accordingly, all significant operating EBEIDAT o sZ D BP I I TS AR BAE AR BRI TS
decisions are based upon analysis of the Company as one TRREEE -
segment. The financial results from this segment are equivalent to
the financial statements as a whole.
The Company had not commenced operations during the period AARMKE2010F2 A1 H(EFMAZEE) =
from 1 February 2010 (date of incorporation) to 31 December 2010 2010 12 A 31 HIEHAMIW AR MRS - B R
and no segment analysis by investment type and geographical TR B LA R M i IR [ 4o 5 SRR AT o
location was provided.
REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WALHTIOT -
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A1 H
(FEfBAKSZ B HR)
BZE2011F F20104F
12A31H 12431 H
LEE 1E AR
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank interest income |RITH S WA 7,824 -
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NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF 6. RAFEZEBERIRZEME
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT EREE AT EEEFE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A1 H
(FEfASZ B 89)
BZ2011F E20104F
12HA31H 12H31H
IHEE 1EEAR
HK$ HK$
BT VST
Net realised loss on financial assets BEATEBBERSRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREESREETE (778,960) =
Net unrealised loss on financial assets RATEBERERERZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRVEEREE EEFE (40,862,135) =
Net realised gain on financial liabilities BEATEBBERSRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRIBEEEKEFE 2,233,387 -
Net exchange losses HNE B 1R A (75,171) =
(39,482,879) -
FEIFEEREERAT —B——FEFERE
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7. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ﬂEW/ﬁﬂ A BB
The Company’s loss for the year/period is arrived at after charging: RRABZFEAN/ HREBBLHRA T SERE
o

Period from

1 February 2010

(date of

Year ended incorporation)

31 December to 31 December

2011 2010

2010F2 A1 H

(FEfAksz B EE)

HE2011 & Z20104F

12A31H 12431 H

LFE 1 HAfE

HK$ HK$

BT ST

Investment management fee (note 10) KEEEE(HE10) 5,219,572 =

Net exchange losses SN SRR (E 75,171 -

Auditors’ remuneration A Gl 277,000 60,000

Legal and professional fees EERBEEATER 830,674 466,877
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

8. EEM=

i
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31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H

RIE_EMRARER R ARG 161 15T AREE

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies ZAFEEEMSOT
Ordinance, is as follows:
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 H1H
(FEftAR Sz B BR)
HZE2011 5 £ 20104
12A31H 12 H31H
LEFE 1EEAfE
HK$ HK$
AT I
Fees ik 467,092 -
Other emoluments HAb & - =
467,092 =

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

(a) BIFMITES

FA/ AN FBLIERTEENES

the year/period were as follows: me

Period from

1 February 2010

(date of
Year ended incorporation)

31 December to 31 December

2011 2010

20102 H1H

(G B HR)

BZ2011F ZE20104F

12A31H 12 H31H

LHFE 1E AR

HK$ HKS$

BT I

Mr. Siu Kam Chau IR AE 116,773 =
Professor Xu Yangsheng RiGEHIE 116,773 —
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally 5c 4 116,773 —
350,319 -

TEFSBREERAT ZB——FFERSE
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM& (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
The fees paid to executive directors during the year/period ER/ AL TFRITESNRSOT ¢
were as follows:
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A1 H
(sEfAk Sz B H#)
BZ20115F 20104
12A31H 12 A31H
LHEE 1EHAR
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay 5t 4 - =
Mr. Wang Junyan FERESLE - =
Mr. Gu Xu EENBE A 116,773 =
116,773 -
9. PERSONNEL 9. AE
The Company did not employ any personnel during the year (2010: AR ERAE AN EEAER A S (2010F : £) ©
Nil).
10. FEES 10. B/
Administration fee THEERE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Administrator”) is entitled to
receive an administration fee which is calculated at each valuation
day at the following rates:

First HK$800 million of net asset value 0.140% per annum
Next HK$1,200 million of net asset value 0.125% per annum
On the remainder of net asset value 0.110% per annum
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10. FEES (Continued)

Administration fee (Continued)

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HK$73,000 (reduced by 50% in the first six months after listing)
and is payable monthly in arrears. The administration fee for the
year was HK$651,113 (2010: Nil). As at 31 December 2011, an
administration fee of HK$73,000 was payable to the Administrator
(2010: Nil).

Valuation fee

The Administrator is also entitled to a fee of HK$8,000 per additional
valuation. This is payable on a monthly basis for a calculation of the
Company’s net asset value on an ad-hoc basis. No valuation fee
was charged for the year (2010: Nil). As at 31 December 2011, no
valuation fee was payable to the Administrator (2010: Nil).

Custodian fee

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited (the “Custodian”)
is entitled to receive a custodian fee which is calculated at each
valuation day at the following rates:

First HK$800 million of net asset value 0.040% per annum

Next HK$1,200 million of net asset value 0.035% per annum

On the remainder of net asset value 0.080% per annum
The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HK$15,000 (reduced by 50% in the first six months after listing) and
is payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the year was HK$144,448 (2010: Nil). As at 31
December 2011, a custodian fee of HK$15,000 was payable to the
Custodian (2010: Nil).

Management fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee accruing
monthly at the annual rate of 2% of the net asset value of the
Company on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The management fee for the year was HK$5,219,572 (2010: Nil).
As at 31 December 2011, a management fee of HK$392,501 was
payable to the Investment Manager (2010: Nil).

10.

) i’%#lﬁ% By &t

31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H

EHE)
THEBRE(E)
THEBREAESSARKERM 73,0008 T(R L

& B 7N @ B B3R 50%) 43R & AR & A B %
SfF e REETHRERE A651,113/857(2010
£ ) P20 EFE12A31B THEREE
73,000 B T FITHERA (20104 : £&) ©

HER

THERE N &R EEIMEE TG REUER S, ooo;‘%fc
B - ZERAKALN  ARREEEEFE
RNAREBEFE - AFEWEEEHEE(2010
) o PA20114E 12 A31 B WEMKEER
NFITHERA(0104F « ) ©

TEE
ELEBEETRE(EMNERARTTEEANE
BEWENSHERE T EXRFTENTES
BEFEN & 0.040%
H{E8EE T

BEFEN E HF40.035%
128787C

BEFENBR TS 4 0.030%

AEEASTEARKER 15,0008 T(R EHE
BN E B EIR50%) 4R RERS A B #iE S A -

AEEAEEH 144,448 BT (2010F - ) -
201112 8318 ' 55& & 15,0008 T Tt
EAN(20104F : £&) -

EEE

FEEBEABFRRIIZAD NS HEREEF
BE2%WFLLERIZA RN ERE  WEAREA
== SR

REEEIRE 55,219,572 T (20104 : ) -
R20114F12 A31 B » B 392,501 & JTESS
TFREEIEA (20104 : ££) o

TEFKERERRAR IZB——FFEHRS
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FEES (Continued)

Performance fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a performance fee
at the rate of 20% per annum of the net increase in the net asset
value per share on the immediately preceding valuation date, above
the previous highest net asset value per share on any preceding
valuation date in respect of which a performance fee was last
paid (or where no performance fee has been paid, the aggregate
placing price of the shares subscribed at the listing date) multiplied
by the number of shares in issue at the time of calculating the
performance fee. The performance fee is payable semi-annually in
arrears. No performance fee was charged for the year (2010: Nil).
As at 31 December 2011, no performance fee was payable to the
Investment Manager (2010: Nil).

TAXATION

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there are no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

The Company received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Council of the Cayman Islands to the effect that, for a period
of twenty years from the date of the undertaking, no law that is
hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax on
income will be levied on the Company.

Hong Kong
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the

Company did not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong
during the year (2010: Nil).
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11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. BE(E)
Hong Kong (Continued) E5E(E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax PR F A TE 7 2R 5 FA A BR 7 Al S 18 0 F 8 52 1 Ed %
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is BERRERFENTIES BHRAOT ¢
as follows:
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation)
31 December to 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A1 H
(FEfAZ B HR)
BZ2011F Z 20104
12A31H 12 H31H
LtFE 1EEAR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax BT RIEE (49,098,434) (555,377)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BAERE16.5% T H TR (8,101,242) (91,637)
Income not subject to tax BERBRUA (1,291) -
Investment loss not deductible for tax AR R B 518 6,197,184 -
Expenses not deductible for tax TR AR 1,461,317 91,637
Tax losses not recognised REERIIEEE 444,032 =
Tax charge at effective rate of 0% RERRTE 0% sTH T IEX H - =

The Company has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$2,691,103 (2010: Nil) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as the Company has been
loss-making since the date of incorporation and it is not considered
probable, in the near foreseeable future, that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

PRC

No provision was made for taxation in the financial statements as
the Company did not generate any PRC sourced income during the
year (2010: Nil).

ARRRREBE AT IEE1E2,691,103% 7T
(20104 : #&) - A4 IR B 85 R 2R FE R B i
F o ARAAR B2 BEEE —EEER
52 B T] T8 R A AR SRR A] BEEE A A 8 AR B TE &S
BRI ERTORA - B 2 E SRR
HEE o

E
R R B F A R B A AR A

(2010%F : &) » BRAL BN EATE IR AVEHTRIA R
i’ o
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LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR EBRESEEABRMLGER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE s
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on SREAGESEN T RERIEAE ARER
the Company’s loss for the year attributable to the ordinary equity F B KN R Al F 849,098,434 % JT(20104F :
holders of HK$49,098,434 (2010: HK$555,377) and the weighted 555,377 BT ) M A FE B 31T X AR MNEFEH
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of £0298,849,315 % (2010 4F : 1 AR L BAR) T ES
298,849,315 (2010: 1 ordinary share). No adjustment has been H o AR R A AFEWED BRI TBEZ2EEYT
made to the basic loss per share amount presented for the year BAR (20104 « £) » Eitt - WEHBZE2011F
ended 31 December 2011 in respect of a dilution as the Company 12 A1 HILFEE 25 2 SRERNBEELS
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year RAEE 2 A -
(2010: Nil.
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 13. FANFIER H B EWRIEA
RECEIVABLES
2011 2010
2011 £ 2010 4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments TEFRIE 261,161 =
Interest receivable FEWFE 584 -
Other receivables H b e W sk T8 320,703 =
582,448 -
None of the above assets are either past due or impaired. The it B ERES TN ERE o 5T A LA AR
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables SRVEE YA f HAN e KGR 8k A EMGRIE ©
for which there was no recent history of default.
PREPAID LISTING EXPENSES 14, FE{F EmBAX

The prepaid listing expenses represent the transaction costs
incurred by the Company in the prior period in connection with
the placing of 303,000,000 shares on the Stock Exchange on 6
January 2011 as detailed in note 19. The prepaid listing expenses
are incremental costs directly attributable to the Placing transaction
and are deducted from equity upon Placing during the year.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
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31 December 2011 2011412 431 H

15. BAVEEBBERIIRZEHME

E

2011 2010
2011 F 20104
HK$ HK$
BT I
Financial assets held for trading, at fair value: HEEEMNEREE @ IRAFE :
Listed equity securities — Hong Kong TR ES -BS 12,979,050 =
Listed equity securities — The United States RS S R 13,871,056 =
26,850,106 -
The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based FHERFAN AT ETRERBE SRS AN

on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant stock
exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

The equity securities listed in the United States represent the
ordinary shares of a company (the “Entity”) acquired by the
Company (the “Shares”) prior to an initial public offering of the Entity
on a relevant stock exchange (the “IPO”) pursuant to a subscription
agreement dated 15 April 2011. The IPO was completed in May
2011. The Shares were subject to a lock-up period ending 180
days after the date of the final prospectus relating to the IPO (the
“Lock-up Period”). The Shares may be sold in secondary market
transactions over the relevant exchange upon the expiration of
the Lock-up Period, subject to certain conditions set forth in Rule
144 of the Securities Act in the United States. During the year,
the Shares were registered and the Lock-up Period ended on 1
November 2011.

Net unrealised loss on financial assets held for trading of
HK$40,862,135 has been recognised in profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income (2010: Nil).

REPRATRENTISREETE

FERETREREFERARRARE2011F
415 BENRE RN EEEFRIME—RHA
AI(TEREDER AARE(ERAFREE DA
Wiz EEnEER (RG] BRAREER
20115 ATERK - RIDZAN B E R AFREE
SR E2 B HEE 180 A IR EHA([ 22
S8  BOTREEHEME  BREEZEFE
FRFB1AMEFTEN S T IRGRIERR ST =4
MERSEEE - TN BHEELRREEHR
20114611 B1HER -

HIEEE 2 € mE EAS I E18FE40,862,135
BILEREE WK T R AU sk B8 (2010
FoE) o
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16. RENFEEE
2011 2010
2011 20104F
HK$ HKS
BT I
Cash at bank RITIRE 3,664,389 —
Short-term time deposits G HITE HAfE 3 207,997,452 =
211,661,841 -
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank HRITIFR T ARG A RITERA R 2 )Z B F =
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying BREVF B - MEAEEAF R HIR N F—RAE =&
periods between one day to three months depending on the ATE  BFARREREFTRKZBEME
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at A2 HATE AifE SRR & 18 B SR A R R AR B - 3R
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The cash at bank and THRe RERTEBREREFTARS DGEZRT
short-term time deposits are placed with Hong Kong and Shanghai BRAR] ©
Banking Corporation Limited.
17. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 17. Htt BN RIER B EA
2011 2010
2011 20104F
HK$ HKS$
BT ST
Other payables HE S 50E 322,929 6,672,387
Accruals fEETE M - 12,799,930
322,929 19,372,317
As at 31 December 2011, the other payables are non-interest- 7201112 A31 B « EAEMNFKIBTRHE &
bearing and have an average term of less than three months. FHFRLR=MEA -
As at 31 December 2010, other payables and accruals represent all 20105612 A31 A « EMENFIBEREFTER
the start-up costs and expenses of, and incidental to, the Placing ThIE S MALE RELEEERFTA KL YIEAE A &
including but not limited to the Company’s establishment costs, S BREETERARRRBIIAAR « f&inEE
the issue, listing, marketing and placing of the shares, the placing 7+ kW - mSHEERRGOES BERHE K
commission, the preparation of the Placing document and the BIPRE S KA R R AR AR TS R R R T L B E
material contracts entered into by the Company with the relevant RERTKZFIERER ) - EIFRIBTIIAHE R
services providers (the “Start-up Costs”). The payables are non- EHFEOR=[A - RKIZYEAE A HAA R
interest-bearing and have an average term of less than three W ERT& BRSPS SRIBAEST ©

months. They were all subsequently settled by the Company out of
the proceeds from the Placing.
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18. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

The balance as at 31 December 2011 represents management fee
payable to the Investment Manager (2010: Nil). The amount is non-
interest bearing and has a repayment term of less than 1 month.

The balance as at 31 December 2010 represents the accumulated
Start-up Costs that had been settled by CITIC Securities
International Fund Management Limited (“CSIFM”) on behalf of the
Company in the period from 1 February 2010 (date of incorporation)
to 31 December 2010. CSIFM is the parent company of the
Investment Manager of the Company. The Start-up Costs settled by
CSIFM were reimbursed directly from the proceeds of the Placing
upon completion of the Placing in January 2011.

ok
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{iB BT B

PR BRE R RIFIE

2011 12 A 31 HEARERNIEEEEANERE
B (2010 4F : ) o ZFKETHIFE K FRER 2
R1{EA -

18.

20104 12 A 31 B 4 #2148 CITIC Securities Inter-
national Fund Management Limited([ CSIFM |) X
AQER2010F2 A1 8 (EMAZ B #)Z=2010
F12 A31 BILEIM S MM 2R AIEAE A -
CSIFM AR R AIRIREEIE AR AR] © CSIFM
SRR HIERE A B 2011 1 ARG 5E/KE
WEEEMERIERNERZER -

19. ISSUED CAPITAL 19. EBTRAE
2011 2010
2011 £ 20104F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JETE
776,000,000 ordinary shares 776,000,000 (20104 : 776,000,000)f%
(2010: 776,000,000 ordinary shares) EERFAREE 0.1 8T
of HK$0.1 each 77,600,000 77,600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR
303,000,000 ordinary shares 303,000,000 (20104F : 1)A%
(2010: 1 ordinary share) LR FREE BT
of HK$0.1 each 30,300,000 -

The Company was incorporated on 1 February 2010 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$388,000 divided into 3,880,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed on 26 July 2010, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$388,000 to HK$77,600,000
by the creation of 772,120,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each,
ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing share capital of
the Company.

On incorporation, one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each was issued
at par for cash to Mr. Wang Junyan, an executive director of the
Company (the “Subscriber Share”). As at 31 December 2010, such
issued share of the Company amounting to HK$0.1 is rounded
to the nearest dollar and therefore presented as nil in the financial
statements.

ANRAFR2010 F£2 51 BRI #H6EE
A% 7N £ 388,000 4 7T 9 43,880,000 % & A E
BB TR LB - IREMN20105F7 A26 H
BBRTRRAER - BB 772,120,000 KE
AREEO. 1B LAY AR (A FTA 5 EELAR A AR
REBRAZHEREFMAL) - RARKEERAR
388,000 /& LI = 77,600,000 /8 7T °

RSB - 1R REEO0.A1 B TH L AR
([REARMD DIEEEZRITTARRNTEST
BESLE  NBREUERE - R2010F12 A31 1 -
AR RZBREBRITRG 01 B TARERER
ZATL MR BERET2IAT -

TEFKERERRAR IZB——FFEHRS
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ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

On 6 January 2011, a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each (the “Placing Shares”) were placed at a price of
HK$1.03 per share for a total cash consideration, before the related
issue expenses, of HK$312,090,000. The issued and fully paid
capital of the Company was increased to HK$30,300,000 and
resulted in a share premium of HK$281,790,000, before deducting
the share placement expenses of HK$24,057,224. The Subscriber
Share was transferred to the lead placing agent of the Placing and
then forms part of the Placing Shares for subscription under the
Placing. The Subscriber Share has no special rights that distinguish
it from any other of the Placing Shares. The Placing Shares are
not redeemable at the discretion of the shareholders. The net
proceeds of the Placing, after deduction of the Start-up Costs of the
Company, were subsequently applied by the Investment Manager
in making investments according to the investment objectives,
policies and restrictions of the Company and the requirements of
the articles of association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the
Investment Management Agreement. Any proceeds not deployed
will be placed on bank deposits or invested in money market
instruments or money market funds.

Dealings in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 6 January 2011. After listing, no director of the
Company or the Investment Manager, or the Investment Manager
itself, will hold any shares in the Company.

NET ASSET/(LIABILITY) VALUE PER
SHARE

The calculation of net asset/(liability) value per share is based
on the net assets of the Company as at 31 December 2011
of HK$238,378,965 (2010: net liabilities of the Company of
HK$555,377) and on 303,000,000 ordinary shares being in issue as
at 31 December 2011 (2010: 1 ordinary share).
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ERITRAE(E)

1201141 A6 H + & F£303,000,000 %=X HE
B0.1 BT EBR(TEEERMD DIZER1.03%
TTRIER T RS - MBRIEEEITHZRIR &R
{B#8%H/5312,090,00087T « AR AIE 81T R
B RRZRIE Z230,300,00058 7 + MR RMHELER X
24,057,224 7 TR B Bk (7 )= {8 281,790,000 74
TT © I AR NEE TRCEMEEREMRIE - I
REERBRIRREERBIRERNHN—HD - R
B8 A P51 M8 2 5 AR 1 A [ Bl A (R EL A i 5 R
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BRI - ARARREHEZIRE - EWARRI R
BERGHRERERFERESNMERIEFE
(R AR BRI B A ) o (EAIARE AR
BB FERTEZSAEREEEMSTA
HEBMHEESD -

ARARMDIR2011F1 A6 HRBREZTE
E o L&« ARAINIEEERANES - iR
BEBARGIRBRFBARGMEMRG

BREE (BFE)FE

BREE (BRE)FAETIEARRKR2011 F12
A 31 BH & EF(E 238,378,965 78 7L (2010 4F :
AAR BEFEESSS3778 L) MiZBE T
303,000,000 A% & iE AR (2010 4F : 1 AR E@AR ) &t
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Investment Manager — CITIC Securities International Investment
Management (HK) Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise
and direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the
assets of the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject
to the investment objective and restrictions of the Company.
The Investment Manager is entitled to receive management
and performance fees for its respective services in terms of the
agreement dated 10 December 2010. Details of the fees to which
the Investment Manager is entitled are provided in note 10 to the
financial statements.

Two directors of the Company served on the Board of Directors of
the Investment Manager for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
the period ended 31 December 2010.

The directors consider the key management personnel of the
Company comprise its Board of Directors, whose remuneration is
shown in note 8 to the financial statements.

21.
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B TR ET AR B A0 SOl EET R 5
SN ARRBRFRERETET IIIRS ¢

REEHEA - il 5 B REEE (FE)FR

NGT|

REEEABEUNEEBIEELE 82 BBN
ERARRIEENRE RENBRE @ HER
ARAMBREBRMREIOR - REBEAR
20105 12 A 10 BRATHO ek (R - BREBLER
HHORBURERENKRRE - BAREEEA
BRI E R F BN B IRKMEE10

AAGIMBESEREZ2011F12 A31 HILFE
KEZE2010F12 A31 BIEHENREEEASE
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31 December 2011

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

2011412 A31H

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2011

Financial assets

2011 &
SEMEE

Financial assets at
fair value through

22 RERBSERMITA

FEReRTANREHAROREELNT

profit or loss: Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
BAFEEBER
IR SREE :
BFEE EBERRERFE #az
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets included in sEATER B M E A
prepayments and other JE U FRIE Y
receivables TREE - 321,287 321,287
Financial assets at fair value BAFEERBRIER
through profit or loss ZEMEE 26,850,106 - 26,850,106
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE - 211,661,841 211,661,841
26,850,106 211,983,128 238,833,234
Financial liabilities SREE
At amortised
cost
R R A
HK$
BT
Other payables Hith FEAS 508 322,929
Amount due to a related company FES BAE A R FIE 392,501
715,430
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 22, ##¥E5|&8|o /T A (&)

23.

(Continued)

2010

Financial liabilities

2010 5
sMEE

At amortised
cost

R SHA AR
HK$

I

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to a related company JEfTRAE A B Z A

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was HK$26,850,106 (2010: Nil). All of
them were classified as Level 1 fair value measurements. As at
31 December 2010, none of the Company’s financial assets were
measured at fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair value measurements, and no
transfers into and out of Level 3.

HoA S OB K e B

23.

19,372,317
5,240,377

24,612,694

DFEER

AAREATIEREERERERMIAEZ AT
B :

1%  HABBEENE EERTHRE
GREBR) ST EMATE

FoA RAERIDFHENAFE - M&FHE
RIOMWAAB AN EEENEE AR EREUE - I
HEARATEAEAYE

F= RAERIDENRFE  TREFHE
BRI E @ AETIHREABEEMSBUR(T
ABRBEABE)GE  WHEARAFEAER

=4
=

MR2011F12 431 H * ARRIEAFEBBE
R 2 &R E E 526,850,106 8 7T (2010 4F
) HIRE— R AT EEETHE - K 2010
F12A318  ARalzeRBEEMEZATE

S -

HE20M1F12A31BILFE  F—HEE—H
ZEAFEFEWEER - EEEE REEE
E=M o

FEFKERERRAE ZB——FFERS
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholder’s value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company’s risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio
with the investment objective and policies and investment
restrictions lies with the Board of Directors of the Company, that will
be advised by the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting of Mr. Wang, Mr. Lindsay and Mr. Dally
has been formed to monitor the operational and portfolio risks to the
Company. The risk committee will monitor the Investment Manager
including review whether the investment objective and polices
and investment restrictions are being followed by the Investment
Manager. In case of any deviation, the risk committee will discuss
deviations with the Investment Manager immediately and monitor
any agreed remedial action. For all material deviations the risk
committee will formulate recommendations to the Board on the
appropriate remedial actions to be made. The risk committee will
meet on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is requested
by any risk committee member.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
trading equity investments (note 15) as at 31 December 2011. The
Company’s listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong and
New York stock exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 24, IEEREEEERBE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

FAEREHARNSAR H B LXK RERE -
MIEFRZHAORRIEE - ARRNFERAZBER
Rim RREEAT -

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

31 December High/low
B/ &
2011 2011
20114
12A31H 20114
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index EE—BEEH 18,434.39 24,419.62/16,250.27
The United States — NYA Index Z[ —NYAFEE 2,605.15 2,873.54/2,335.83

TRINREMB EMEERFIENELTEER
B e ER R EEH AR eSS BRI E
ABIEFEERER B NBLFEEZBAE
S EAE - EEBRYP @  ERRSERIGET
NHRESTMEMTRE - Z2HEEK o T
THEESEEFELENXSEHRAFERR I
the difference could be material. An equivalent increase in each of 2.

the indices shown below would have resulted in an equivalent, but

opposite, impact.

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the net assets
attributable to equity holders and on the change in net assets
attributable to equity holders from operations due to a reasonably
possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held
constant is indicated in the following table. In practice, the actual
trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below and

BRIREEEE LI ATHRBREDHT - BIEIMNE
ERE o

In addition to the change in equity indices, the sensitivity analysis
below includes the effect of foreign currency exchange rates.

Change in net
assets due to

% of reasonable
possible change of

% of reasonable
possible change

the relevant
benchmark index

of the relevant FERAE B SR 2

benchmark index EEEHEHL

Relevant market index Beta FERAEEIE 2 FrEs & E
FERERR (D52 g A IR SFEREAE)
HK$

ST

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index B —BEEE 0.3816 +10 +1,024,600
The United States — NYA Index EEB —NYAEER 0.5086 +10 +1,365,596

TEHEERERRAT

—E——FEEHE
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected. To limit this risk, management monitors the Company’s
liquidity position from time to time.

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months
equal their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is
insignificant. The table also analyses the maturity profile of the
Company'’s financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in
order to provide a complete view of the Company’s contractual
commitments and liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of equity securities at fair value through profit or loss into
maturity groupings is based on the expected date on which these
assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis into maturity
groupings is based on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the
expected date on which the assets will be realised.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 24. BIEEKREEEZERBER(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESRERE(E)
At 31 December 2011 M2011E12H31H
Less than 1to
On demand 1 month 3 months Total
BER PR—EA —Z=@A wEt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in FTATERRIE R
prepayments and o to fE IR GRIE Y
other receivables EREE - - 321,287 321,287
Financial assets at fair value BAFEE BB
through profit or loss RS REE 26,850,106 - - 26,850,106
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFE 3,664,389 207,997,452 - 211,661,841
Total financial assets EREERE 30,514,495 207,997,452 321,287 238,833,234
Other payables H b fE T RIE - - 322,929 322,929
Amount due to & —FH
a related company RAENBFIA - 392,501 - 392,501
Total financial liabilities TREGERE - 392,501 322,029 715,430
At 31 December 2010 #2010F12A31H
Less than 110
On demand 1 month 3 months Total
BER DR —{EA —Z={@A BEt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Other payables and accruals H b (S 5RI8
KESTER - - 19,372,317 19,372,317
Amount due to FEA—F
a related company RAE N R IR 5,240,377 - - 5,240,377
Total financial liabilities TRBGEERE 5,240,377 - 19,372,317 24,612,694

FEFEAREERAT —E——EEEss [/
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises on
short-term time deposits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible changes in the interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s net loss before tax with respect to the
Company’s net cash position.

24,

Net exposure

B EREEE BRI (E)

=@

NEREBESRTARRKRSRENEERE
T 35 7 2R BBt T R B O LB

RABAERD MR ER K B 52 E TR

TRHA - REMBERITRE - KD AGH
HIBSIRFEEAARDBRSAR T AR AR
EBHOGHBE -

Change in Sensitivity of

basis points interest income

R Hugsy FNERABRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2011 2011 &
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEE 211,661,841 x50 +1,058,309

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities are non-interest bearing. The Company is not exposed to
any risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest
rates.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Board of Directors considers the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis has been
presented in these financial statements.
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing to discharge an
obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is monitored by
the Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and investments placed with Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, which management believes is of high
credit quality.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking
account of any collateral held as at the reporting dates in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the
capital of the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to
the Company and repurchases by the Company. The primary
objectives of the Company’s capital management are to safeguard
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to invest
the capital in investments meeting the description and risk exposure
indicated in the Company’s prospectus. The Investment Manager
manages the capital of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s investment objectives and policies. The Company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 9 March 2012.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Company
for the last two financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements is set out below. No financial information was
presented for the financial years ended 2007 to 2009 was due to the fact
that the Company was incorporated on 1 February 2010.

AARGEMERBREEZEEREERBERE(H
BB IR BT EREZ) ST - HRARQRERR
ER2010F2 A1 HEMAK - SR E =2007 F &=
2009 F IE M F E A 25| I5E R o

RESULTS E4
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended incorporation) to
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
20102 A1 H
BZ2011F (EfMpkzBE)
128318 220105
IEFEE 12 A31 B LR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
REVENUE I@N 7,824 =
LOSS BEFORE TAX BR% AT 518 (49,098,434) (555,377)
Income tax TSR - -
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AABELERERE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD E=2=PN;
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY ERHREE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY REzHEEBEEE (49,098,434) (555,377)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAREBERERFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEREE
OF THE COMPANY (0.16) (555,377)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2011 2010
2011 5 20104
HK$ HK$
BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 239,094,395 24,057,317
TOTAL LIABILITIES SEHAE (715,430) (24,612,694)
238,378,965 (555,377)
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